Attachment G

This page intentionally left blank.

File ID 13-0638 No. 76



Monterey County

Board Order

168 West Alisal Street, 1st Floor Salinas, CA.93901 831.755.5066

Agreement No.: A-12490

Upon motion of Supervisor Salinas, seconded by Supervisor Potter and carried by those members present, the Board of Supervisors hereby:

a. Approved an Agreement with Pacific Municipal Consultants, dba PMC to provide permit application review services for the County of Monterey, Resource Management Agency - Planning (RFQ #10382), in the amount not to exceed \$100,000 per fiscal year, for a period of three (3) years from execution of the Agreement with the option to extend the Agreement for two (2) additional one (1) year periods, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement; and

b. Authorize the Contracts/Purchasing Officer to execute the Agreement and future amendments to the Agreement where the amendments do not significantly alter the scope of work or change the approved Agreement amount. (PD060591/Pacific Municipal Consultants)

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 25th day of June 2013, by the following vote, to wit:

AYES: Supervisors Armenta, Calcagno, Salinas and Potter NOES: None ABSENT: Supervisor Parker

I, Gail T. Borkowski, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Monterey, State of California, hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of an original order of said Board of Supervisors duly made and entered in the minutes thereof of Minute Book 76 for the meeting on June 25, 2013.

Dated: July 9, 2013 File Number: 13-0638 Gail T. Borkowski, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors County of Monterey, State of California

By Un

Deputy

AGREEMENT FOR PERMIT APPLICATION REVIEW SERVICES BY AND BETWEEN COUNTY OF MONTEREY AND PACIFIC MUNICIPAL CONSULTANTS, DBA PMC

This AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the County of Monterey, a political subdivision of the State of California, hereinafter referred to as "County", and Pacific Municipal Consultants, DBA PMC, hereinafter referred to as "CONTRACTOR."

RECITALS

WHEREAS, County has invited Qualifications through the Request for Qualifications (RFQ) # 10382 for Permit Application Review Services, in accordance with the specifications set forth in this AGREEMENT; and

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR has submitted a responsive and responsible Qualifications to perform such services; and

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR has the expertise and capabilities necessary to provide the services requested.

NOW THEREFORE, County and CONTRACTOR, for the consideration hereinafter named, agree as follows:

1.0 PERFORMANCE OF THE AGREEMENT

1.1 After consideration and evaluation of the CONTRACTOR'S Qualifications, the County hereby engages CONTRACTOR to provide the services set forth in RFQ #10382 and in this AGREEMENT on the terms and conditions contained herein and in RFQ #10382. The intent of this AGREEMENT is to summarize the contractual obligations of the parties. The component parts of this AGREEMENT include the following:

AGREEMENT including all attachments and exhibits RFQ #10382 Addendum #1 RFQ #10382 dated 12/20/12, including all attachments and exhibits CONTRACTOR'S Qualifications Package submitted dated 01/17/13 Certificate of Insurance Additional Insured Endorsements

1.2 All of the above-referenced contract documents are intended to be complementary. Work required by one of the above-referenced contract documents and not by others shall be done as if required by all. In the event of a conflict between or among component parts of the contract, the contract documents shall be construed in the following order:

AGREEMENT including all Attachments and Exhibits, RFQ #10382 Addendum #1, RFQ #10382 including all attachments and exhibits, CONTRACTOR's Qualifications Package dated 01/17/13, Certificate of Insurance, and Additional Insured Endorsements.

- 1.3 CONTRACTOR warrants that CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR's agents, employees, and subcontractors performing services under this AGREEMENT are specially trained, experienced, competent, and appropriately licensed to perform the work and deliver the services required under this AGREEMENT and are not employees of the County, or immediate family of an employee of the County.
- 1.4 CONTRACTOR, its agents, employees, and subcontractors shall perform all work in a safe and skillful manner and in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. All work performed under this AGREEMENT that is required by law to be performed or supervised by licensed personnel shall be performed in accordance with such licensing requirements.
 - 1.4.1 CONTRACTOR must maintain all licenses throughout the term of the AGREEMENT.
- 1.5 CONTRACTOR shall furnish, at its own expense, all materials, equipment, and personnel necessary to carry out the terms of this AGREEMENT, except as otherwise specified in this AGREEMENT. CONTRACTOR shall not use County premises, property (including equipment, instruments, or supplies) or personnel for any purpose other than in the performance of its obligations under this AGREEMENT.

2.0 SCOPE OF SERVICE

- 2.1 <u>Contractor Minimum Work Performance Percentage:</u> CONTRACTOR shall perform with his own organization contract work amounting to not less than fifty (50) percent of the original total contract price, except that any designated 'Specialty Items' may be performed by subcontract and the amount of any such 'Specialty Items' so performed may be deducted from the original total AGREEMENT price before computing the amount of work required to be performed by CONTRACTOR with its organization.
- 2.2 The Scope of Work includes but is not limited to the following:
 - 2.2.1 **Project Intake and Initial Contact:** County's Project Planner shall hand out the application and subsequently receive and review application materials and technical reports (e.g., traffic, noise, air quality, soils and geology, archeological, biology), and confirm the permits required and the level of environmental review necessary. County's Project Planner will prepare the Interdepartmental Review (IDR) Packets and will identify the tasks that are to be performed by CONTRACTOR for the project. CONTRACTOR, before proceeding, shall articulate in writing a statement defining the steps required to process the project, confirming County expectations regarding staff assignment and the definition of the work effort required to process the application and scheduling on a draft budget sheet.

- 2.2.2 **Cost/Time Estimate:** CONTRACTOR shall submit their Qualifications with a budget estimate to include hours to complete the tasks required to process the application as identified by the County's Project Planner.
- 2.2.3 **Project Evaluation:** CONTRACTOR shall review the IDR comments, make a site visit, if deemed necessary by County's Project Planner, or may communicate with County's Project Planner and review photos. In collaboration with County's Project Planner, CONTRACTOR shall determine the project status and whether additional information is required per the State's permit streamlining requirements and CEQA.
- 2.2.4 **CEQA Determination:** CONTRACTOR and County's Project Planner will determine whether a categorical exemption or initial environmental review study is required.
 - 2.2.4.1 Final determination whether the project is categorically exempt or if an environmental review is required will made by County's Project planner.
- Preparation of Initial Study/Negative/Mitigated Negative Declaration When 2.2.5 an Environmental Initial Study is deemed necessary by County, CONTRACTOR, in collaboration with County's Project Planner, shall determine the scope of the initial study and identify potentially significant issues that need to be addressed. CONTRACTOR shall prepare a cost estimate of the Initial Study and present to County for approval. Once approved, CONTRACTOR shall complete an administrative draft Initial Study including impact analysis, mitigation measures and monitoring actions. CONTRACTOR shall submit a completed and finished administrative draft Initial Study to the County's Project Planner for the Project Planner's review. CONTRACTOR shall make such revisions as the County Planner directs. The administrative draft Initial Study will then be circulated through the County Clearinghouse The County Clearinghouse is responsible for distributing (one week). environmental documents to other County land use departments for review and collects their comments. Once acceptable to County staff, , the administrative draft Initial Study may be forwarded by County's Project Planner to the applicant for a one week review to only correct or revise factual details in the Project Description and agree to any proposed mitigation measures. If, during the preparation of the Initial Study, it is determined that an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) is required for the project, the County will follow its standard procedure for hiring an EIR consultant. If the CONTRACTOR is on the County's EIR consultant list, the CONTRACTOR shall not be eligible to prepare the EIR for this permit.
- 2.2.6 Set Public Hearing Date for the Application: CONTRACTOR shall work with County's Project Planner to determine an appropriate date to schedule the public hearing. This decision must follow County cutoff dates for staff report

submission, review, corrections, and production and meet requirements of the state Permit Streamlining Act.

- 2.2.7Staff Report Preparation and Review: After the application is deemed complete, and in consultation with the County's Project Planner, the CONTRACTOR shall prepare a draft staff report including all attachments and exhibits as required by County utilizing County templates to produce a clear and concise overview of the proposed project, issues and their resolution. This shall include a summary of the Land Use Advisory Committee (LUAC) action, where necessary. The appropriate Findings and Evidence shall be included in the draft resolution attached to the staff report and completed with comprehensive, clear and concise evidence to support findings. The Condition Compliance/Mitigation Monitoring matrix (i.e., list of conditions of approval, mitigation measures and monitoring actions) shall be completed. CONTRACTOR shall submit the draft staff report, findings and evidence and conditions and mitigation measure matrix to the County's Project Planner and make such revisions as the County's Project Planner directs.
- 2.2.8 **Presentation and Responses to Comments and Last Minute Issues:** CONTRACTOR shall prepare all appropriate presentation materials for the hearing body as requested by County. CONTRACTOR shall be available during office hours one week prior to the public hearing to assist County's project planner to resolve any remaining issues or respond to comments in written form from the public and provide support to County as necessary.
- 2.2.9 **Public Hearing Follow-up Appeals: Under the direction of the County's Project Planner,** CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for revising and changing any findings, evidence, or conditions/mitigation measures that are a result of the hearing process. CONTRACTOR may be required to prepare a revised staff report and following recommendations of the hearing body. If the project is appealed to another County hearing body (e.g., from the Planning Commission to the Board of Supervisors) then CONTRACTOR shall respond to the appeal and prepare an appropriate discussion of the appeal topics in a *denovo* type staff report, prepare findings and evidence addressing the appeal and re-insert conditions and mitigations if the Planning Department is submitting an affirmative recommendation.
- 2.2.10 **Field Trips:** CONTRACTOR shall conduct field trips as needed for each project development application and related environmental review if required. Field trip requirements will ultimately be the decision of the County as appropriate.
- 2.2.11 **Responsible Agency Contacts:** CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for early contacts with interested agencies identified by the County's Project Planner.

- 2.2.12 **County Plans, Ordinances, Forms, Templates and Process:** It shall be the responsibility of the CONTRACTOR to receive and review all County Plans, Ordinances, Forms (as applicable) and templates for reviewing, analyzing, preparing, and processing the permit application products and documents. It shall be the responsibility of the CONTRACTOR to endeavor to learn and master the County's permitting and related environmental review process to minimize involvement of staff time during the processing of the individual permits.
- 2.2.13 Files and file Organization: CONTRACTOR shall receive a copy of the Planning Department's file and all subsequent correspondence. All e-mails and electronic files shall be forwarded immediately to County's Project Planner.

2.3 Scheduled Documents Delivered: CONTRACTOR shall deliver one electronic copy and one clean hard copy original of the staff report with all required attachments per County format and requirements at least two weeks prior to the public hearing as the final completed product with all reviews and required approvals. CONTRACTOR shall deliver one electronic copy and one original hard copy of the Initial Study/Negative Declaration (where required) pursuant to a schedule set at the time the CEQA determination is made. By no later than when the Initial Study is ready for release to the public for the public review and comment period, CONTRACTOR shall provide to the County a complete and accurate copy of all references listed in the environmental review document prepared by CONTRACTOR.

.)

3.0 TERM OF AGREEMENT

3.1 The term of the AGREEMENT(s) will be for a period of three (3) years with the option to extend the AGREEMENT for two (2) additional one (1) year periods.

3.1.1 County is not required to state a reason if it elects not to renew this AGREEMENT.

3.2 CONTRACTOR shall commence negotiations for any desired rate changes a minimum of ninety days (90) prior to the expiration of this AGREEMENT in order to be considered.

3.2.1 Both parties shall agree upon rate extension(s) or changes in writing.

3.3 County reserves the right to cancel this AGREEMENT, or any extension of this AGREEMENT, without cause, with a thirty day (30) written notice, or immediately with cause.

4:0 COMPENSATION AND PAYMENTS

4.1 It is mutually understood and agreed by both parties that CONTRACTOR shall be compensated under this AGREEMENT in accordance with the pricing sheet attached

hereto as ATTACHMENT A. The total amount of this AGREEMENT shall not exceed \$100,000 per fiscal year.

- 4.2 Prices shall remain firm for the initial term of this AGREEMENT and, thereafter, may be adjusted annually as provided in this paragraph. County does not guarantee any minimum or maximum amount of dollars to be spent under this AGREEMENT.
- 4.3 Negotiations for rate changes shall be commenced, by CONTRACTOR, a minimum of ninety days (90) prior to the expiration of this AGREEMENT.
- 4.4 Any discount offered by the CONTRACTOR must allow for payment after receipt and acceptance of services, material or equipment and correct invoice, whichever is later. In no case will a discount be considered that requires payment in less than 30 days.
- 4.5 CONTRACTOR shall levy no additional fees or surcharges of any kind during the term of this AGREEMENT without first obtaining approval from County in writing.
- 4.6 <u>Tax:</u>
 - 4.6.1 Pricing as per this AGREEMENT is inclusive of all applicable taxes.
 - 4.6.2 County is registered with the Internal Revenue Service, San Francisco office, and registration number 94-6000524. The County is exempt from Federal Transportation Tax; an exemption certificate is not required where shipping documents show Monterey County as consignee.

5.0 INVOICES AND PURCHASE ORDERS

5.1 Invoices for all services rendered per this AGREEMENT shall be billed directly to the **Planning Department of the Resource Management Agency** at the following address:

County of Monterey, RMA Planning Dept. Attn: Accounting 168 W. Alisal St., 2nd Floor Salinas, CA 93901

5.2 CONTACTOR shall reference the RFQ #10382 on all invoices submitted to County. CONTRACTOR shall submit such invoices periodically or at the completion of services, but in any event, not later than 30 days after completion of services. The invoice shall set forth the amounts claimed by CONTRACTOR for the previous period, together with an itemized basis for the amounts claimed, and such other information pertinent to the invoice. County shall certify the invoice, either in the requested amount or in such other amount as County approves in conformity with this AGREEMENT, and shall promptly submit such invoice to County Auditor-Controller for payment. County Auditor-Controller shall pay the amount certified within 30 days of receiving the certified invoice.

NW

- 5.3 All County of Monterey Purchase Orders issued for the AGREEMENT are valid only during the fiscal year in which they are issued (the fiscal year is defined as July 1 through June 30).
- 5.4 Unauthorized Surcharges or Fees: Invoices containing unauthorized surcharges or unauthorized fees of any kind shall be rejected by County. Surcharges and additional fees not included the AGREEMENT must be approved by County in writing via an Amendment.

6:0 DESIGN PROFESSIONAL INDEMNIFICATION

- 6.1 For purposes of the following indemnification provisions ("Indemnification AGREEMENT"), "design professional" has the same meaning as set forth in California Civil Code section 2782.8. If any term, provision or application of this Indemnification AGREEMENT is found to be invalid, in violation of public policy or unenforceable to any extent, such finding shall not invalidate any other term or provision of this Indemnification AGREEMENT and such other terms and provisions shall continue in full force and effect. If there is any conflict between the terms, provisions or application of this Indemnification AGREEMENT and the provisions of California Civil Code Sections 2782 or 2782.8, the broadest indemnity protection for County under this Indemnity AGREEMENT that is permitted by law shall be provided by CONTRACTOR.
- 6.2 <u>Indemnification for Design Professional Services Claims:</u> For liability arising from professional and technical services under this AGREEMENT, CONTRACTOR shall indemnity, defend and hold harmless County, its governing board, directors and employees from any loss, injury, damage, expense, and liability to the extent arising out of the negligence of CONTRACTOR, its employees, subconsultants or agents.
- 6.3 Indemnification for All Other Claims or Loss:

For any liability, other than arising out of professional and technical services, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless County, its governing board, directors and employees from any loss, injury, damage, expenses and liability resulting from injury to or death of any person and loss of or damage to property, or claim of such injury, death, loss or damage caused by an act or omission in the performance under this AGREEMENT by CONTRACTOR, its employees, subconsultants or agents, excepting only loss, injury or damage caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct of County.

7.0 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

7.1 Evidence of Coverage:

- 7.1.1 Prior to commencement of this AGREEMENT, CONTRACTOR shall provide a "Certificate of Insurance" certifying that coverage as required herein has been obtained. Individual endorsements executed by the insurance carrier shall accompany the certificate. In addition CONTRACTOR upon request shall provide a certified copy of the policy or policies.
- 7.1.2 This verification of coverage shall be sent to the County's Contracts/Purchasing Department, unless otherwise directed. CONTRACTOR shall <u>not</u> receive a "Notice to Proceed" with the work under this AGREEMENT until it has obtained all insurance required and such, insurance has been approved by County. This approval of insurance shall neither relieve nor decrease the liability of CONTRACTOR.
- 7.2 <u>Qualifying Insurers:</u> All coverage's, except surety, shall be issued by companies which hold a current policy holder's alphabetic and financial size category rating of not less than A- VII, according to the current Best's Key Rating Guide or a company of equal financial stability that is approved by County's Purchasing Officer.
- 7.3 Insurance Coverage Requirements:
 - 7.3.1 Without limiting CONTRACTOR's duty to indemnify, CONTRACTOR shall maintain in effect throughout the term of this AGREEMENT a policy or policies of insurance with the following minimum limits of liability:
 - 7.3.1.1 <u>Commercial general liability insurance</u>, including but not limited to premises and operations, including coverage for Bodily Injury and Property Damage, Personal Injury, Contractual Liability, Broadform Property Damage, Independent Contractors, Products and Completed Operations, with a combined single limit for Bodily Injury and Property Damage of not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence.
 - 7.3.2 <u>Business automobile liability insurance</u>, covering all motor vehicles, including owned, leased, non-owned, and hired vehicles, used in providing services under this AGREEMENT, with a combined single limit for Bodily Injury and Property Damage of not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence.
 - 7.3.3 <u>Workers' Compensation Insurance</u>, if CONTRACTOR employs others in the performance of this AGREEMENT, in accordance with California Labor Code section 3700 and with Employer's Liability limits not less

than \$1,000,000 each person, \$1,000,000 each accident and \$1,000,000 each disease.

7.3.4 <u>Professional liability insurance</u>, if required for the professional services being provided, (e.g., those persons authorized by a license to engage in a business or profession regulated by the California Business and Professions Code), in the amount of not less than \$1,000,000 per claim and \$2,000,000 in the aggregate, to cover liability for malpractice or errors or omissions made in the course of rendering professional services. If professional liability insurance is written on a "claims-made" basis rather than an occurrence basis, CONTRACTOR shall, upon the expiration or earlier termination of this AGREEMENT, obtain extended reporting coverage ("tail coverage") with the same liability limits. Any such tail coverage shall continue for at least three years following the expiration or earlier termination of this AGREEMENT.

7.4 Other Insurance Requirements:

- 7.4.1 All insurance required by this AGREEMENT shall be with a company acceptable to County and issued and executed by an admitted insurer authorized to transact Insurance business in the State of California. Unless otherwise specified by this AGREEMENT, all such insurance shall be written on an occurrence basis, or, if the policy is not written on an occurrence basis, such policy with the coverage required herein shall continue in effect for a period of three years following the date CONTRACTOR completes its performance of services under this AGREEMENT.
- 7.4.2 Each liability policy shall provide that County shall be given notice in writing at least thirty days in advance of any endorsed reduction in coverage or limit, cancellation, or intended non-renewal thereof. Each policy shall provide coverage for CONTRACTOR and additional insureds with respect to claims arising from each subcontractor, if any, performing work under this AGREEMENT, or be accompanied by a certificate of insurance from each subcontractor showing each subcontractor has identical insurance coverage to the above requirements.
- 7.4.3 <u>Commercial general liability and automobile liability policies shall provide an</u> <u>endorsement naming the County of Monterey, its officers, agents, and employees</u> <u>as Additional Insureds with respect to liability arising out of the</u> <u>CONTRACTOR'S work, including ongoing and completed operations, and shall</u> <u>further provide that such insurance is primary insurance to any insurance or self-</u> <u>insurance maintained by the County and that the insurance of the Additional</u> <u>Insureds shall not be called upon to contribute to a loss covered by the</u> <u>CONTRACTOR'S insurance. The required endorsement form for Commercial</u> <u>General Liability Additional Insured is ISO Form CG 20 10 11-85 or CG 20 10</u> <u>10 01 in tandem with CG 20 37 10 01 (2000). The required endorsement form for</u> <u>Automobile Additional Insured endorsement is ISO Form CA 20 48 02 99.</u>

- 7.4.4 Prior to the execution of this AGREEMENT by County, CONTRACTOR shall file certificates of insurance with County's contract administrator and County's Contracts/Purchasing Division, showing that CONTRACTOR has in effect the insurance required by this AGREEMENT. CONTRACTOR shall file a new or amended certificate of insurance within five calendar days after any change is made in any insurance policy, which would alter the information on the certificate then on file. Acceptance or approval of insurance shall in no way modify or change the indemnification clause in this AGREEMENT, which shall continue in full force and effect.
- 7.4.5 CONTRACTOR shall at all times during the term of this AGREEMENT maintain in force the insurance coverage required under this AGREEMENT and shall send, without demand by County, annual certificates to County's Contract Administrator and County's Contracts/Purchasing Division. If the certificate is not received by the expiration date, County shall notify CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR shall have five calendar days to send in the certificate, evidencing no lapse in coverage during the interim. Failure by CONTRACTOR to maintain such insurance is a default of this AGREEMENT, which entitles County, at its sole discretion, to terminate this AGREEMENT immediately.

8:0 RECORDS AND CONFIDENTIALITY

- 8.1 <u>Confidentiality:</u> CONTRACTOR and its officers, employees, agents, and subcontractors shall comply with any and all federal, state, and local laws, which provide for the confidentiality of records and other information. CONTRACTOR shall not disclose any confidential records or other confidential information received from the County or prepared in connection with the performance of this AGREEMENT, unless County specifically permits CONTRACTOR to disclose such records or information. CONTRACTOR shall promptly transmit to County any and all requests for disclosure of any such confidential records or information. CONTRACTOR shall not use any confidential information gained by CONTRACTOR in the performance of this AGREEMENT except for the sole purpose of carrying out CONTRACTOR's obligations under this AGREEMENT.
- 8.2 <u>County Records:</u> When this AGREEMENT expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR shall return to County any County records which CONTRACTOR used or received from County to perform services under this AGREEMENT.
- 8.3 <u>Maintenance of Records:</u> CONTRACTOR shall prepare, maintain, and preserve all reports and records that may be required by federal, state, and County rules and regulations related to services performed under this AGREEMENT.
- 8.4 <u>Access to and Audit of Records:</u> County shall have the right to examine, monitor and audit all records, documents, conditions, and activities of CONTRACTOR and its

subcontractors related to services provided under this AGREEMENT. The parties to this AGREEMENT may be subject, at the request of County or as part of any audit of County, to the examination and audit of the State Auditor pertaining to matters connected with the performance of this AGREEMENT for a period of three years after final payment under the AGREEMENT.

9:0 NON-DISCRIMINATION

- 9.1 During the performance of this contract, CONTRACTOR shall not unlawfully discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, marital status, age (over 40), sex, or sexual orientation. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that the evaluation and treatment of its employees and applicants for employment are free of such discrimination. CONTRACTOR shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government Code, §12900, et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, §7285.0, et seq.).
- 9.2 The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code, §12900, et seq., set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations are incorporated into this AGREEMENT by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full.
- 9.3 CONTRACTOR shall include the non-discrimination and compliance provisions of the clause in all AGREEMENTs with subcontractors to perform work under the contract.

10.0 OVERRIDING CONTRACTOR PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS

- 10.1 <u>Independent Contractor:</u> CONTRACTOR shall be an independent contractor and shall not be an employee of Monterey County, nor immediate family of an employee of County. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for all insurance (General Liability, Automobile, Workers' Compensation, unemployment, etc.) and all payroll-related taxes. CONTRACTOR shall not be entitled to any employee benefits. CONTRACTOR shall control the manner and means of accomplishing the result contracted for herein.
- 10.2 Non-Assignment: CONTRACTOR shall <u>not</u> assign this contract or the work required herein without the prior written consent of County.
- 10.3 Any subcontractor shall comply with all of County of Monterey requirements, including insurance and indemnification requirements as detailed in SAMPLE AGREEMENT.

11.0 CONFLICT OF INTEREST

- 11.1 CONTRACTOR covenants that it presently has no interest, and shall not have any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner with the performance of services required under this AGREEMENT. Without limitation, CONTRACTOR represents to and agrees with the COUNTY that CONTRACTOR has no present, and will have no future, conflict of interest between providing the COUNTY services hereunder and any other person or entity (including but not limited to any federal or state environmental or regulatory agency) which has any interest adverse or potentially adverse to the COUNTY, as determined in the reasonable judgment of the Board of Supervisors of the COUNTY.
- 11.2 CONTRACTOR agrees that any information, whether proprietary or not, made known to or discovered by it during the performance of or in connection with this AGREEMENT for the COUNTY will be kept confidential and not be disclosed to any other person. CONTRACTOR agrees to immediately notify the COUNTY by notices provided in accordance with Section 18.0 of this AGREEMENT, if it is requested to disclose any information made known to or discovered by it during the performance of or in connection with this AGREEMENT. These conflict of interest and future service provisions and limitations shall remain fully effective five (5) years after termination of services to the COUNTY hereunder.

12:0 COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS

- 12.1 CONTRACTOR shall keep itself informed of and in compliance with all federal, state and local laws, ordinances, regulations, and orders, including but not limited to all state and federal tax laws that may affect in any manner the Project or the performance of the Services or those engaged to perform Services under this AGREEMENT. CONTRACTOR shall procure all permits and licenses, pay all charges and fees, and give all notices required by law in the performance of the Services.
- 12.2 CONTRACTOR shall report immediately to County's Contracts/Purchasing Officer, in writing, any discrepancy or inconsistency it discovers in the laws, ordinances, regulations, orders, and/or guidelines in relation to the Project of the performance of the Services.
- 12.3 All documentation prepared by CONTRACTOR shall provide for a completed project that conforms to all applicable codes, rules, regulations and guidelines that are in force at the time such documentation is prepared.

13.0 DRUG FREE WORKPLACE

13.1 CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR'S employees shall comply with the COUNTY'S policy of maintaining a drug free workplace. Neither CONTRACTOR nor CONTRACTOR'S employees shall unlawfully manufacture, distribute, dispense, possess or use controlled substances, as defined in 21 U.S. Code § 812, including, but not limited to, marijuana, heroin, cocaine, and amphetamines, at any COUNTY facility or work site. If CONTRACTOR or any employee of CONTRACTOR is convicted or pleads no contest to a criminal drug statute violation occurring at a COUNTY facility or work site, the CONTRACTOR shall, within five days thereafter notify the head of the COUNTY department/agency for which the AGREEMENT services are performed. Violation of this provision shall constitute a material breach of this AGREEMENT.

14.0 TIME OF ESSENCE

14.1 Time is of the essence in respect to all provisions of this AGREEMENT that specify a time for performance; provided, however, that the foregoing shall not be construed to limit or deprive a party of the benefits of any grace or use period allowed in this AGREEMENT.

15.0 WAIVER

15.1 No waiver of a breach, failure of any condition, or any right or remedy contained in or granted by the provisions of this AGREEMENT shall be effective unless it is in writing and signed by the party waiving the breach, failure, right or remedy. No waiver of any breach, failure, right or remedy shall be deemed a waiver of any other breach, failure, right or remedy, whether or not similar, nor shall any waiver constitute a continuing waiver unless the writing so specifies.

16.0 ASSURANCE OF PERFORMANCE

16.1 If at any Time COUNTY believes CONTRACTOR may not be adequately performing its obligations under this AGREEMENT or that CONTRACTOR may fail to complete the Services as required by this AGREEMENT, COUNTY may request from CONTRACTOR prompt written assurances of performance and a written plan acceptable to COUNTY, to correct the observed deficiencies in CONTRACTOR'S performance. CONTRACTOR shall provide such written assurances and written plan within ten (10) calendar days of its receipt of COUNTY'S request and shall thereafter diligently commence and fully perform such written plan. CONTRACTOR acknowledges and

agrees that any failure to provide such written assurances and written plan within the required time is a material breach under this AGREEMENT.

17.0 RIGHTS AND REMEDIES OF THE COUNTY FOR DEFAULT

17.1 In the case of default by CONTRACTOR, County may procure the articles or services from other sources and may recover the loss occasioned thereby from any unpaid balance due to CONTRACTOR or by proceeding against any performance bond of CONTRACTOR, if any, or by suit against CONTRACTOR. The prices paid by County shall be considered the prevailing market price at the time such purchase(s) may be made. Inspections of deliveries or offers for deliveries that do not meet specifications shall be made at the expense of CONTRACTOR.

18.0 NOTICES

- 18.1 Notices required to be given to the respective parties under this AGREEMENT shall be deemed given by any of the following means: (1) when personally delivered to County's contract administrator or to CONTRACTOR'S responsible officer; (2) when personally delivered to the party's principle place of business during normal business hours, by leaving notice with any person apparently in charge of the office and advising such person of the import and contents of the notice; (3) 24 hours after the notice is transmitted by FAX machine to the other party, at the party's FAX number specified pursuant to this AGREEMENT, provided that the party giving notice by FAX must promptly confirm receipt of the FAX by telephone to the receiving party's office; or, (4) three (3) days after the notice is deposited in the U. S. mail with first class or better postage fully prepaid, addressed to the party as indicated below.
- 18.2 Notices mailed or faxed to the parties shall be addressed as follows:

TO COUNTY: Contracts/Purchasing Officer County of Monterey, Contracts/Purchasing 168 W. Alisal Street, 3rd Floor. Salinas, CA 93901-2439 Tel. No.: (831) 755-4990 FAX No.: (831) 755-4969 derrm@co.monterey.ca.us

TO CONTRACTOR:

PMC Attn: Philip O. Carter, President 2729 Prospect Park Drive, Suite 220 Rancho Cordova, CA 95670 Tel No (916) 361-8384, ext. 10202 FAX No (916) 361-1574 pcarter@pmcworld.com

Mate

. .

19.0 LEGAL DISPUTES

- 19.1 CONTRACTOR agrees that this AGREEMENT and any dispute arising from the relationship between the parties to this AGREEMENT, shall be governed and interpreted by the laws of the State of California, excluding any laws that direct the application of another jurisdiction's laws.
- 19.2 Any dispute that arises under or relates to this AGREEMENT (whether contract, tort, or both) shall be resolved in the Superior Court of California in Monterey County, California.
- 19.3 CONTRACTOR shall continue to perform under this AGREEMENT during any dispute.
- 19.4 The parties agree to waive their separate rights to a trial by jury. This waiver means that the trial will be before a judge.

This space left blank intentionally

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County and CO	
follows:	
PT()	
MONTEREY COUNTY	CONTRACTOR
L LAA	By: /hh
Contracts/Purchasing Officer	Signature of Chair, President, or
Contracts/Furchasing Officer	Vice-President
Dated: 4-4-13 7.14.13	Philip O. Carter, President
	Printed Name and Title
Approved as to Fiscal Provisions:	
Approved as tor isour 1 to as iong.	Dated: 3-21-13
, Ob hiere	Datod. 9 121 19
Deputy Auditor/Controller,	By: AMMen Lebourf (Signature of Secretary, Asst. Secretary, CFO)
1 E G	By: Constant A art Socratory CRO
Dated: 6511-	(Signature of Secretary, Asst. Secretary, CrO, Treasurer or Asst. Treasurer)*
NISK MANAGEMEN	
ASOPHILITY OF LINDUNTERSFISIONS:	Jennifer LeBoeuf, Secretary Printed Name and Title
APPROVED AS TO INDEMNITY/	Drinted Name and Title
•	Fillited Ivallie and Thie
INSURANCE LANGUAGE	D = 1 - 2 - 0 = 1 - 1 - 2
Risk Management	Dated: 3-21-13
By: <u>Alyden Schumake</u>	
Datses 10-4-13	
Approved as to Form:	
R adding and	
avoition of Olason	
Deputy County Counsel	
Dated: 6-3-13	

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the County and CONTRACTOR execute this AGREEMENT as

County Board of Supervisors' Agreement Number:

*INSTRUCTIONS: If CONTRACTOR is a corporation, including limited liability and non-profit corporations, the full legal name of the corporation shall be set forth above together with the signatures of two specified officers. If CONTRACTOR is a partnership, the name of the partnership shall be set forth above together with the signature of a partner who has authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the partnership. If CONTRACTOR is contracting in an individual capacity, the individual shall set forth the name of the business, if any, and shall personally sign the Agreement.

NN

Agreement for Permit Application Review Services per RFQ 10382 with PMC

RFQ# 10382 Planning Consultants/Permit Applications: Review

ATTACHMENT - A PRICING SHEET

Service:	State your firm's rate of the cost for any contract of the cost for any co
Permit Review (regular)	:\$4,000
Other (indicate) Permit Review (complex)	.\$8,000
Other Initial Study (indicate)	\$3,000 - \$10,000

Service:	State your firm's rate in dollars per each thour:
Permit Review (regular)	\$130
Other (indicate) Permit Review (complex)	:\$1.30
Other Initial Study (indicate)	\$120

The undersigned, having read and understood all proposal information, hereby submits hourly rates. It is understood that the basic design of each particular type of facility can be duplicated as the situation permits. It is also understood that the Eee Schedule will be used by the COUNTY as a criteria to select the firm(s) for possible interviews by the Selection Committee. But that a final fee may be negotiated with the qualified firm(s) for the required services.

Reimbursable Items to be Billed (Please list)	Estimated (Note, indicated ma exceed 10%)	l Cost Bills arkup should not
<u>i serve a server a ser</u>	Total Cost	% of Markup calculated
Copy/Printing Vendors		10%
Subconsultants		10%

Pricing sheet shall be submitted in a separate sealed envelope. Pricing shall only be opened for the awarded CONTRACTOR(s).

---End of ATTACHMENT A---

Page 35 of 38

Date (MM/DD/YR) **CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE** ТМ ACORD 6/27/2013 THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). CONTACT PRODUCER Sherry Young NAME Heffernan Professional Practice Insurance Brokers FAX PHONE 714-361-7700 714-361-7711 License No. 0564249 (A/C,No,Ext): (A/C,No): EMAIL 6 Hutton Centre Dr., Ste 500 sherryy@heffins.com ADDRESS: Santa Ana, CA 92707 INSURERS AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC # INSURED INSURER A: Citizens Insurance Co of America 31534 INSURER B: Hanover American Insurance Co. 36034 Pacific Municipal Consultants INSURER C: Massachusetts Bay Insurance Co 22306 DBA: PMC INSURER D: Continental Casualty Co. 20443 2729 Prospect Park Dr., Ste 220 INSURER E: Rancho Cordova, CA 95670 INSURER F: CERTIFICATE NUMBER: **REVISION NUMBER:** COVERAGES THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

5

. X	CLAIMS-MADE X. OCCUR EN'L. AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER POLICY X PROJECT LOC UTOMOBILE LIABILITY ANY AUTO ALL OWNED AUTOS SCHEDULED AUTOS	x		OE3914666102	07/01/13	07/01/14	EACH OCCURRENCE DAMAGE TO RENTED PREMISES (Ea occurrence) MED EXP (Any one person) PERSONAL & ADV INJURY GENERAL AGGREGATE PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT (Ea accident)	\$2,000,000 \$1,000,000 \$10,000 \$2,000,000 \$4,000,000 \$4,000,000 \$ 2,000,000
	CLAIMS-MADE X. OCCUR EN'L. AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER POLICY X PROJECT LOC UTOMOBILE LIABILITY ANY AUTO ALL OWNED AUTOS SCHEDULED AUTOS	x					PREMISES (Ea occurrence) MED EXP (Any one person) PERSONAL & ADV INJURY GENERAL AGGREGATE PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT (Ea accident)	\$10,000 \$2,000,000 \$4,000,000 \$4,000,000 \$
AL	EN'L. AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER POLICY X PROJECT LOC UTOMOBILE LIABILITY ANY AUTO ALL OWNED AUTOS SCHEDULED AUTOS			OB3914666102	07/01/13	07/04/44	PERSONAL & ADV INJURY GENERAL AGGREGATE PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT (Ea accident)	\$2,000,000 \$4,000,000 \$4,000,000 \$
AL	POLICY X PROJECT LOC UTOMOBILE LIABILITY ANY AUTO ALL OWNED AUTOS SCHEDULED AUTOS			OB3914666102	07/01/13	07/04/44	GENERAL AGGREGATE PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT (Ea accident)	\$4,000,000 \$4,000,000 \$
AL	POLICY X PROJECT LOC UTOMOBILE LIABILITY ANY AUTO ALL OWNED AUTOS SCHEDULED AUTOS			OB3914666102	07/01/13	07/04/44	PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG	\$4,000,000 \$
AL	POLICY X PROJECT LOC UTOMOBILE LIABILITY ANY AUTO ALL OWNED AUTOS SCHEDULED AUTOS			OB3914666102	07/01/13	07/04/44	COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT (Ea accident)	\$
\ 	ANY AUTO ALL OWNED AUTOS SCHEDULED AUTOS			OB3914666102	07/01/13		(Ea accident)	······
\ 	ANY AUTO ALL OWNED AUTOS SCHEDULED AUTOS			OB3914666102	07/01/13	07/04/44	(Ea accident)	2,000,000
	ALL OWNED AUTOS	•		OB3914666102	07/01/13	DZIDAJAA		
X	ALL OWNED AUTOS AUTOS				01101110	07/01/14	BODILY INJURY (Per person)	\$
X	-		•	· · ·	• •		BODILY INJURY (Per accident)	\$
1.0	HIRED AUTOS X NON-OWNED AUTOS						PROPERTY DAMAGE (Per accident)	s
								Ş
XX	UMBRELLA LIAB X OCCUR			OB3914666102	07/01/13	07/01/14	EACH OCCURRENCE	\$2,000,000
	EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE					, i	AGGREGATE	\$2,000,000
	DED X RETENTION \$10,000				· · ·			\$
	VORKERS COMPENSATION ND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y/N	·					X WC STATU- TORY LIMITS ER	
2 1 * *	ND EMPLOYERS LABILITY TIN			WZ3912749003 (CA, AZ)	07/01/13 .	07/01/14	E.L. EACH ACCIDENT	\$1,000,000
; (M	Andatory in N.H.)	N/A	•	WD3912749602 (OR)	07/01/13	07/01/14	E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE	\$1,000,000
tr O	yes, describe under DESCRIPTION OF PERATIONS below						E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT	\$1,000,000
	Professional Liability			MCH288307507	07/01/13	07/01/14	Per Claim Aggregate	\$2,000,000 \$3,000,000
rojects as amed as a ancellatic	ON OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (A s on file with the insured including but not lin additional insureds on the general liability po on except for cancellation due to non-paymen CATE HOLDER	mited to olicy- see	Permit A attache	Application Review Svcs RFQ d endorsement. "The above p	10382. County o olicies contain a	of Monterey, its	officers, agents and employ	ees are nd

County of Monterey Contracts/Purchasing	SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
168 W. Alisal St., 3rd Fl.	AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
Salinas, CA 93901-2439	MADE -
	1111 PC
ACORD 25 (2010/05)	@1-8-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

Policy Number: OB3914666102

Pacific Municipal Consultants Insured: DBA: PMC

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

GENERAL LIABILITY SUPPLEMENTARY ENDORSEMENT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESSOWNERS COVERAGE FORM

I. Additional Insured by Contract, Agreement or Permit Under SECTION II - LIABILITY, C. Who is An Insured, Paragraph 4. is added as follows:

a. Any person or organization for you are performing whom operations when you and such person or organization have agreed in writing in a contract, agreement or permit that such person or organization be added as an additional insured on your policy. Such person or organization is an additional insured only with respect to liability for "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by: • . ..

(1) Your acts or omissions; or

(2) The acts or omissions of those acting on your behalf,

but only with respect to:

(3) "Your work" for the additional insured(s) at the location designated in the contract, agreement or permit; or

(4) Premises you own, rent, lease, control or occupy.

basis if that is required by the written contract, agreement or permit and a second

b. This provision does not apply:

(1) Unless the written contract or written agreement has been executed or permit has been

injury", "property damage" or

injury"; . . (2) To any person or organization included as an insured by an endorsement issued by us and made part of this Policy;

advertising

(3) To any lessor of equipment

"personal and

- (a) After the equipment lease expires; or
- (b) If the "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" arises out of the sole negligence of the lessor;

(4) To any:

(a) Owners or other interests from whom land has been leased which takes place after the lease for that land expires; or

(b) Managers or lessors of premises if:

> (i) The occurrence takes place after you cease to be a tenant in that premises; or

> (ii) The "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" anses out of structural alterations. new construction or. demolition operations performed by or on behalf of the manager

> > or lessor, or

issued prior to the "bodily" (5) To "bodily injury", "propertydamage" or "personal and advertising injury" arising out of

391-1586 02 11

includes copyrighted material of insurance Services Offices, Inc., with its permission

Page 1 of 4

the rendering of or the failure to render any professional services. This includes but is not limited to any professional services as an architect or engineer arising out of any construction agreement or activities under which any insured or anyone acting on any insured's behalf provides or provided service, advice, expertise or work. Construction includes, but is not limited to, the plan, conception, design, build, construct, assembly, development, safety, erection, formation, reconstruct. rehabilitation, repair, or any improvement made to real property. Construction also includes the hiring, supervision or management of any of these activities. However, this exclusion does not apply to liability arising out of an insured's presence at a jobsite that was not caused by professional activities listed in the above paragraph.

- Additional insured coverage provided by this provision will not be broader than coverage provided to any other insured.
- All other insuring agreements, exclusions, and conditions of the policy apply.
- II. Additional Insured by Contract, Agreement or Permit – Primary and Non-contributory

The following is added to SECTION III - COMMON POLICY CONDITIONS:

M. Other Insurance

1. Additional insureds

If you agree in a written contract, written agreement or permit that the insurance provided to any person or organization included as an Additional Insured under SECTION II - LIABILITY, Part C – Who is An Insured, is primary and non-contributory, the following applies: If other valid and collectible insurance is available to the Additional Insured for a loss we cover under SECTION II – LIABILITY, Part A. Coverages, Paragraph 1., Business Liability our obligations are limited as follows:

. Primary Insurance

This insurance is primary to other insurance that is available to the Additional Insured which covers the Additional Insured as a Named Insured. We will not seek contribution from any other insurance available to the Additional Insured except

- (1) For the sole negligence of the Additional Insured;
- (2) When the Additional Insured is an Additional Insured under another primary liability policy; or
- (3) When b.(2) below applies.

If this insurance is primary, our obligations are not affected unless the other апу of is insurance also primary. Then, we will share with all that other insurance by the method described in b.(3) below.

b. Excess insurance

This insurance is excess over:

- (1) Any of the other insurance, whether primary, excess, contingent or on any other basis:
 - (a) That is Fire, Extended Coverage, Builder's Risk, Installation Risk or similar coverage for "your work";

391-1586 02 11

includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Offices, Inc., with its permission

Page 2 of 4

Fire (b) That is insurance for premises rented to Additional the Insured ٥r temporarily by occupied the Additional Insured with permission of the owner;

That is insurance purchased by the Additional Insured to cover the Additional Insured's liability as a tenant for "property damage" to premises rented to Additional the Insured OF temporarily occupied by the Additional Insured with permission of the owner; or

(d) If the loss arises out of the maintenance or use of aircraft, "autos" or watercraft to the extent not subject to Exclusion g. of SECTION II – LIABILITY, Part A. Coverages, 1. Business Liability.

When this insurance is excess, we will have no duty under SECTION II – LIABILITY, Part A. Coverages, 1. Business Liability to defend the insured against any "suit" if any other insurer has a duty to defend the insured against that "suit". If no other insurer defends, we will undertake to do so, but we will be entitled to the insured's rights against all those other insurers.

When this insurance is excess over other insurance, we will pay only our share of the amount of the loss, if any, that exceeds the sum of The total amount that all such other insurance would pay for the loss in the absence of this insurance; and

(2) The total of all deductible and self-insured amounts under all that other insurance.

We will share the remaining loss, if any, with any other insurance that is not described in this Excess Insurance provision and was not bought specifically to apply in excess of the Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations of this Coverage Part.

c. Method Of Sharing

. <u>.</u> .

1 . .

If all of the other insurance permits contribution by equal shares, we will follow this method also. Under this approach each insurer contributes equal amounts until it has paid its applicable limit of insurance or none of the loss remains, whichever comes first.

If any of the other insurance does not permit contribution by equal shares, we will contribute by limits. Under this method, each insurer's share is based on the ratio of its applicable limit of insurance to the total applicable limits of insurance of all insurers.

III. Aggregate Limit of Insurance (Per Project)

 a. For purposes of the coverage provided by this endorsement, D. Liability and Medical Expenses Limits of Insurance under Section II - Liability is amended by adding the following:

The General Aggregate Limit under D. Liability and Medical Expenses Limits of Insurance applies separately to each of "your projects" or each location listed in the Declarations.

391-1586 02 11

includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Offices, Inc., with its permission

Page 3 of 4

 For purposes of the coverage provided by this endorsement F. Liability And Medical Expenses Definitions under Section II -Liability is amended by adding the following:

a. "Your project" means:

- Any premises, site or location at, on, or in which "your work" is not yet completed; and
- ii. Does not include any location listed in the Declarations.
- IV. Blanket Waiver of Subrogation

Paragraph K. Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against Others To Us in Section III – Common Policy Conditions is amended by the addition of the following:

We will waive any right of recovery we may have against any person or organization when you have agreed in a written contract, permit or agreement to waive any rights of recovery against such person or organization because of payments we make for injury or damage arising out of your ongoing operations or "your work" done under a contract with that person or organization and included in the "products-completed operations hazard".

391-1586 02 11

Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Offices, Inc., with its permission

ACORD ** CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

Date (MM/DD/YR)

8/21/2012

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s) CONTACT PRODUCER Sherry Young NAME: Heffernan Professional Practice Insurance Brokers PHONE FAX 714-361-7700 714-361-7711 (A/C.No): License No. 0564249 (A/C,No,Exl) EMAIL 6 Hutton Centre Dr., Ste 500 sherryy@heffins.com ADDRESS: Santa Ana, CA 92707 INSURERS AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC # Cillizens Insurance Co of America 31534 INSURER A: INSURED Hanover American Insurance Co. 36034 **INSURER B:** Pacific Municipal Consultants Massuchusetts Bay Insurance Co 22306 INSURER C: DBA: RMC 20443 Continental Casualty Co. INSURER D: 2729 Prospect Park Dr., Ste 220 INSURER E: Rancho Cordova, CA 95670 INSURER F: **REVISION NUMBER:** CERTIFICATE NUMBER: COVERAGES THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. SUBR ADDI. เมณาร POLICY HUMBER INSE TYPE OF INSURANCE (HAINDDATTY) (HINDDMYY) LTR \$2,000.000 FACH OCCURRENCE GENERAL L LIABILITY А DAMAGE TO RENTED \$300,000 07/01/12 07/01/13 Х X OBF914666101 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY Х PREMISES (Es occurrence) \$5,000 MED EXP (Any one person) X OCCUR CLAIMS-MADE \$2,000,000 PERSONAL & ADV INJURY GENERAL AGGREGATE \$4,000,000 PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG \$4,000,000 GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER POLICY X PROJECT LOC COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT 2.000.000 AUTOHOBILE LIABILITY (Es accident 07/01/12 07/01/13 BODILY INJURY (Per person) s OBF914666101 ANY AUTO A SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) 5 ALL OWNED AUTOS AUTOS PROPERTY DAMAGE NON-OWNED s HIRED AUTOS Х (Per accident) Х AUTOS s EACH OCCURRENCE \$2,000,000 07/01/13 OCCUR OBF914666101 07/01/12 UMBRELLA LIAB Х A Х AGGREGATE \$2,000,000 CLAIMS-MADE **FXCESS LIAB** s DED X RETENTION \$10,000 WC STATU OTH-WORKERS COMPENSATION Х TORY LIMITS AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY Y/N 07/01/13 07/01/12 WZF912749001 (CA, AZ) E.L. EACH ACCIDENT \$1,000,000 В ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE/ OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N/A x Y E.L. DISEASE . EA EMPLOYEE \$1,000,000 WDF912749601 (OR) 07/01/12 07/01/13 (Mandalory in N.H.) С If yes, describe under DESCRIPTION OF E.L. DISEASE . POLICY LIMIT \$1,000,000 PERATIONS WOO Per Claim \$2,000,000 \$3,000,000 Professional Liability 07/01/13 MCH288307507 07/01/12 D Aggregate DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Allach ACORD 101, Additional Romarks Schedule, If more space is required) Projects as on file with the insured including but not limited to General Plan Implementation Project, including "Green" Ordinances and Energy Efficiency. The County of Monterey, its officers, agents and employees are named as additional insureds & primary/non-contributory clause applies to the general liability, including the non-owned & hired auto liability, and a waiver of subrogation applies to the general liability & work comp policies-see attached endorsements. "The above policies contain a 30-day notice provision for non-renewal and cancellation except for cancellation due to non-payment of premium in which a 10 day notice applies" CANCELLATION CERTIFICATE HOLDER SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH County of Monterey THE POLICY PROVISIONS. Contracts/Purchasing Department AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 168 W, Alisal St., 3rd Fl. Salinas, CA 93901 @1-8-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. ACORD 25 (2010/05)

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

Policy Number: OBF914666101

Insured:

Pacific Municipal Consultants DBA: PMC

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

GENERAL LIABILITY SUPPLEMENTARY ENDORSEMENT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESSOWNERS COVERAGE FORM

I. Additional Insured by Contract, Agreement or Permit

Under SECTION II - LIABILITY, C. Who is An Insured, Paragraph 4. is added as follows:

- a. Any person or organization for are performing whom you operations when you and such person or organization have agreed in writing In a contract, agreement or permit that such person or organization be added as an additional insured on your policy. Such person or organization is an additional insured only with respect to liability for "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by:
 - (1) Your acts or omissions; or
 - (2) The acts or omissions of those acting on your behalf,
 - but only with respect to:
 - (3) "Your work" for the additional insured(s) at the location designated in the contract, agreement or permit; or
 - (4) Premises you own, rent, lease, control or occupy.

This insurance applies on a primary basis if that is required by the written contract, agreement or permit.

b. This provision does not apply:

(1) Unless the written contract or written agreement has been executed or permit has been issued prior to the "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury";

- (2) To any person or organization included as an insured by an endorsement issued by us and made part of this Policy;
- (3) To any lessor of equipment:
 - (a) After the equipment lease expires; or
 - (b) If the "bodly injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" arises out of the sole negligence of the lessor;
- (4) To any:
 - (a) Owners or other interests from whom land has been leased which takes place after the lease for that land expires; or
 - (b) Managers or lessors of premises if:
 - (i) The occurrence takes place after you cease to be a tenant in that premises; or
 - (II) The "bodlly injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" arises of structural out alterations. new construction or demolition operations performed by or on behalf of the manager or lessor; or
- (5) To "bodlly Injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" arising out of

Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Offices, Inc., with its permission

the rendering of or the fallure to professional anv render services. This includes but is not limited to any professional services as an architect or engineer arising out of any construction agreement or activities under which any insured or anyone acting on any insured's behalf provides or provided service, advice, expertise or work. Construction Includes, but is not limited to, the plan, conception, design, build, construct, assembly, development, safety, erection, reconstruct, formation. rehabilitation, repair, or any improvement made to real property. Construction also includes the hiring, supervision or management of any of these However, this activities, exclusion does not apply to liability arising out of an insured's presence at a jobsite that was not caused by professional activities listed in the above paragraph.

- c. Additional insured coverage provided by this provision will not be broader than coverage provided to any other insured.
- All other insuring agreements, exclusions, and conditions of the policy apply.
- II. Additional Insured by Contract, Agreement or Permit – Prim ary and Non-contributory

The following is added to SECTION III - COMMON POLICY CONDITIONS:

- M. Other Insurance.
 - 1. Additional insureds

If you agree in a written contract, written agreement or permit that the insurance provided to any person or organization included as an Additional Insured under SECTION II - LIABILITY, Part C - Who is An Insured, is primary and non-contributory, the following applies: If other valid and collectible insurance is available to the Additional Insured for a loss we cover under SECTION II – LIABILITY, Part A. Coverages, Paragraph 1., Business Liability our obligations are limited as follows:

a. Primary Insurance

This insurance is primary to other insurance that is available to the Additional Insured which covers the Additional insured as a Named Insured. We will not seek contribution from any other insurance available to the Additional Insured except:

- (1) For the sole negligence of the Additional Insured;
- (2) When the Additional Insured is an Additional Insured under another primary liability policy; or
- (3) When b.(2) below applies.

If this insurance is primary, our obligations are not affected unless any of the other insurance is also primary. Then, we will <u>share with all that other</u> insurance by the method described in b.(3) below.

b. Excess Insurance

This insurance is excess over:

- (1) Any of the other insurance, whether primary, excess, contingent or on any other basis:
 - (a) That is Fire, Extended
 Coverage, Builder's Risk, Installation
 Risk or similar
 coverage for "your
 work";

391-1586 02 11

Page 2 of 4

- (b) That is Fire insurance for premises rented to the Additional insured or temporarily occupied by the Additional insured with permission of the owner;
- (c) That is insurance purchased by the Additional Insured to cover the Additional insured's llability as a tenant for "property damage" to premises rented to Additional the Insured or temporarily occupied by the Additional Insured with permission of the owner; or
- (d) If the loss arises out of the maintenance or use of aircraft, "autos" or watercraft to the extent not subject to Exclusion g. of SECTION II – LIABILITY, Part A. Coverages, 1. Business Liability.

When this insurance is excess, we will have no duty under SECTION II – LIABILITY, Part A. Coverages, 1. Business Liability to defend the insured against any "suit" if any other insurer has a duty to defend the insured against that "suit". If no other insurer defends, we will undertake to do so, but we will be entitled to the insured's rights against all those other insurers.

When this insurance is excess over other insurance, we will pay only our share of the amount of the loss, if any, that exceeds the sum of:

- The total amount that all such other insurance would pay for the loss in the absence of this insurance; and
- (2) The total of all deductible and self-insured amounts under all that other insurance.

We will share the remaining loss, if any, with any other insurance that is not described in this Excess Insurance provision and was not bought specifically to apply in excess of the Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations of this Coverage Part.

c. Method Of Sharing

If all of the other insurance permils contribution by equal shares, we will follow this method also. Under this approach each insurer contributes equal amounts until it has paid its applicable limit of insurance or none of the loss remains, whichever comes first.

If any of the other insurance does not permit contribution by equal shares, we will contribute by limits. Under this method, each insurer's share is based on the ratio of its applicable limit of insurance to the total applicable limits of insurance of all insurers.

III. Aggregate Limit of Insurance (Per Project)

a. For purposes of the coverage provided by this endorsement, D.
 Liability and Medical Expenses
 Limits of Insurance under Section
 II – Liability is amended by adding the following:

The General Aggregate Limit under D. Liability and Medical Expenses Limits of Insurance applies separately to each of "your projects" or each location listed in the Declarations.

391-1588 02 11

 b. For purposes of the coverage provided by this endorsement F. Liability And Medical Expenses Definitions under Section II -Liability is amended by adding the following:

a, "Your project" means:

- I. Any premises, site or location at, on, or in which "your work" is not yet completed; and
- ii. Does not include any location listed in the Declarations.

IV, Blanket Walver of Subrogation

Paragraph K. Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against Others To Us in Section III – Common Policy Conditions is amended by the addition of the following:

We will waive any right of recovery we may have against any person or organization when you have agreed in a written contract, permit or agreement to waive any rights of recovery against such person or organization because of payments we make for injury or damage arising out of your ongoing operations or "your work" done under a contract with that person or organization and included in the "products-completed operations hazard".

	A REAL PROPERTY OF THE PROPERT	COUNTY	OF MONTEREY HASE ORDER	ORDER DATE 08-08-2013 DO 3000 0000005118 IMPORTANT THE ABOVE NUMBER AND SHIP TO APPEAR ON ALL SHIPPINGLABEL TRANSPORT DOCUMENTS, INVOIC	E 08-08-2013 0000005118 SHIPTNGLABELS, FUMENTS, INVOICES	ORDER DATE 08-08-2013 DO 3000 000005118 IMPORTANT THE ABOVE NUMBER AND SHIP TO DEPARTMENT MUST APPEAR ON ALL SHIPPINGLABELS, PACKING SLIPS, TRANSPORT DOCUMENTS, INVOICES AND CORRESPONDENCE.
>UZOOK	PACIFIC M PMC 2729 Prost Rancho Cc	PACIFIC MUNICIPAL CONSULTANTS PMC 2729 Prospect Park Drive #220 Rancho Cordova CA 95670	S PLANNING & BLDG/ INSPECTION H INSPECTION P 168 W. ALISAL ST., 2ND FLOOR T SALINAS CA 93901 O	B PLANNING & BLD 1 168 W. ALISAL ST L 2ND FLOOR 3390 O	PLANNING & BLDG/ ALISAL 168 W. ALISAL ST 2ND FLOOR SALINAS CA 93901	
	VENDOR NUMBER:	MBER: CV000001348	DELIVERY DATE: F.O.B.:			
ITEM		UNIT COMMODITY CODE	ITEM DESCRIPTION	UNIT PRICE	SALES TAX	EXTENDED PRICE
		PURCH DESC: THIS PURCHASE ORDER IS ISSUED TO PACIFIC MUNICIPAL CONSULTANTS TO PROVIDE PERMIT APPL REVIEW SERVICES FOR THE COUNTY OF MONTEREY RESOURCE MANAGEMENT AGENCY - PLANNING DEPARTMENT (MYA3000*940)	O PACIFIC MUNICIPAL CONSULTANTS TO PROVIDE Y RESOURCE MANAGEMENT AGENCY - PLANNING I	PERMIT APPLICATION DEPARTMENT	NOIL	
		THE TERM OF THIS AGREEMENT IS FROM 06/25/13 - 06/25/16 WITH THE ADDITIONAL ONE (1) YEAR PERIODS AND SHALL NOT EXCEED \$300,000	- 06/25/16 WITH THE OPTION TO EXTEND THE AGREEMENT FOR TWO (2) DT EXCEED \$300,000	EMENT FOR TWO (;	(2)	
		THIS PURCHASE ORDER IS VALID FROM 07/01/13 - 06/30/14 AND SHALL NOT EXCEED \$100,000	6/30/14 AND SHALL NOT EXCEED \$100,000			
.	0.0	91843		00.	00	100,000.00
	<u>.</u>	COMM LINE DESC: Environmental Consulting EXTENDED DESC: Permit application review services				
		MSDS: Not Required 001 - 3000 - 8172 - RMA001 - 6613 -	100000.00	0		
	THE SHAD	THE SHADED ROWS ARE FOR MONTEREY COUNTY DEPARTMENT USE ONLY	E ONLY	ORDE	ORDER TOTAL	100 000 00
All Vei noted.	ndors are requ Said terms a	All Vendors are required to review the Monterey County general terms and conditions which apply to all contracts, purchase orders, in noted. Said terms and conditions can be found on the County website at http://www.co.monterey.ca.us/admin/terms_conditions.htm and the conditions can be found on the County website at http://www.co.monterey.ca.us/admin/terms_conditions.htm and the conditions can be found on the County website at http://www.co.monterey.ca.us/admin/terms_conditions.htm and the conditions can be found on the County website at http://www.co.monterey.ca.us/admin/terms_conditions.htm and the conditions can be found on the County website at http://www.co.monterey.ca.us/admin/terms_conditions.htm and the conditions can be found on the county website at http://www.co.monterey.ca.us/admin/terms_conditions.htm and the conditions can be found on the county website at http://www.co.monterey.ca.us/admin/terms_conditions.htm and the conditions.htm and conditions.htm a	which apply to all contracts, purchase orders, and other electror co.monterey.ca.us/admin/terms_conditions.htm	and other electronic procurements made with the County unless otherwise	le with the Coun	ty unless otherwise
TAX FEDI	EXEMPTION ERAL EXCISE	TAX EXEMPTION INFORMATION: FEDERAL EXCISE TAX EXEMPTION NUMBER 94-6000524	COUNTY BUYER INFORMATION	TELEPHONE		
		AUTHORIZED BY COUNTY OF MONTEREY DEPUTIZED PURCHASING AGENT	EMAIL:			
PRIN	PRINT DATE: 08/08/13	113 - Midael 72 Tes	CONTRACTS/PURCHASING DIVISION 168 W.Alisal St. 3rd Floor, Salinas, CA 93901	ISION , CA 93901	PAGE NUMBER:	BER: 1 OF 1

This page intentionally left blank